

Section 1. Laws 1963, Chapter 318, Section 1, is amended to read:

Section 1. **Minneapolis, city of; firemen's relief.** The governing body of the city of Minneapolis shall each year at the time the tax levies for the support of the city are made, and in addition thereto, levy a tax on all taxable property within the city in an amount to pay the estimated pension costs due and payable by the Minneapolis fire department relief association pursuant to law for the year said pension costs are to be paid, less the proceeds or moneys paid into the special fund of such association pursuant to the provisions of Minnesota Statutes 1961, Chapter 69, or any other provision of law, during said year. Said tax shall in no event exceed  $4\frac{3}{4}$  two mills. Should the estimated payments from the Minneapolis fire department relief association fund be of such amount as to require a levy in excess of  $1\frac{3}{4}$  mills, the contributions by firemen provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Section 69.361, paragraph 1, shall in that such year be increased from  $3\frac{1}{2}$  percent to  $4\frac{1}{2}$  percent. *Should the estimated payments from the Minneapolis fire department relief association fund be of such amount that the two mill levy is insufficient to enable them to meet such payments, then the contributions by firemen provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Section 69.361, paragraph 1, shall in such year be increased from  $4\frac{1}{2}$  percent to 5 percent.* The tax so levied shall be transmitted with other tax levies to the auditor of the county in which the city of Minneapolis is located and shall be collected and payment thereof enforced when and in like manner as state and county taxes are paid. All moneys collected under such levy shall be credited to the special fund of the association. This levy shall not be considered a part of the tax levy under any limitation in the charter of the city of Minneapolis, but shall be in addition to any existing charter or statutory limitation.

Sec. 2. *This act shall become effective only after its approval by the governing body of the city of Minneapolis and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 645.021.*

Approved May 21, 1965.

---

CHAPTER 579—S. F. No. 251

[Not Coded]

*An act relating to claims against the state, including claims approved by the claims commission; providing for the payment*

**Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

*thereof; providing for the adjudication of certain claims; appropriating money therefor.*

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

**Section 1. Claims against the state.** In order to carry out the recommendations of the claims commission as contained in its biennial report to the legislature covering the claims considered, the claims approved and the awards made pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 1961, Sections 3.66 to 3.84, the appropriations contained in this act are made.

**Sec. 2. Appropriations from game and fish fund.** Subdivision 1. There is appropriated from any moneys in the state treasury credited to the game and fish fund the following sums in full payment of the following claims:

Subd. 2. Joseph R. Johnson, Alexandria,  
Minnesota.

For damages incurred by reason of illegal seizure of furs by game warden. \$178.00

**Sec. 3. Appropriations from general revenue fund.** Subdivision 1. There is appropriated from any moneys in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sums of money set forth in this section to the persons named therein in full payment of claims against the state.

Subd. 2. Louis Franklin  
c/o Stuart Radsom, Attorney at law  
Minnesota Building  
Saint Paul, Minnesota 55101

For injuries sustained while claimant was performing assigned duties at the state prison. 799.60

Subd. 3. Lawrence John Taylor

For deposit in social welfare fund.

For injuries sustained while claimant was performing assigned duties at the state prison.

The amount of this claim is to be disbursed by the commissioner of corrections upon a verification of the identity of the claimant and upon execution of a proper release. 1,150.92

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

Subd. 4.	<p>Lenora Engebretson 941 Rosemary Avenue Fergus Falls, Minnesota.</p> <p>For damage to claimant's glasses by a patient at the Fergus Falls State Hospital.</p>	36.20
Subd. 5.	<p>Edwin W. Derr c/o William L. Orr, Attorney at law 538 Midland Bank Building Minneapolis, Minnesota 55401</p> <p>For injuries sustained while claimant was performing assigned duties at the state prison.</p>	1,400.17
Subd. 6.	<p>Jerome J. Bialke Route 4, Foley, Minnesota.</p> <p>For loss of cow following brucellosis test.</p>	200.00
Subd. 7.	<p>Harold Schweigart R.R. 3, Frazee, Minnesota.</p> <p>For injury to cow and loss of calf following brucellosis test.</p>	267.00
Subd. 8.	<p>Stanley J. Leckband R.R. 2, Brewster, Minnesota.</p> <p>For loss of two ewes and 14 lambs following treatment for eradication of sheep scabies as prescribed by law.</p>	138.00
Subd. 9.	<p><i>Marian High School</i> Marian Drive Owatonna, Minnesota.</p> <p>For damage to plate glass door by student from Owatonna state school.</p>	45.24
Subd. 10.	<p>Karen G. Rudeen 4520 Glenwood Avenue Minneapolis, Minnesota 55422.</p> <p>For injuries sustained by claimant on <i>university of Minnesota property</i>. Of the total allowed, \$3,000 is general damages to be paid directly to the</p>	

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

	claimant upon the execution of a proper release; the balance is for hospital and medical expenses to be disbursed jointly to the claimant and the persons entitled thereto upon submission of properly verified claims therefor to the state auditor.	3,761.25
Subd. 11.	Reynold W. Knickrehm Route 3, Madelia, Minnesota.  For injuries to cow and loss of calf following brucellosis test.	75.00
Subd. 12.	Adolph R. Etzler RFD 1, Motley, Minnesota.  For loss of wages and tractor used to fight forest fire.	800.00
Subd. 13.	Mrs. Anna Kraul Box 173 Deerwood, Minnesota.  For injuries sustained by claimant in fall at national guard armory at Crosby, Minnesota.	520.30
Subd. 14.	Mrs. Madge Gallagher General Delivery Frazee, Minnesota.  For loss of cow following brucellosis test.	125.00
Subd. 15.	Henry R. Cantleberry RFD 1, Motley, Minnesota.  For loss of wages and tractor used to fight forest fire.	800.00
Subd. 16.	Albert Gehrke Route 2, Spicer, Minnesota.  For loss of cow following brucellosis test.	150.00
Subd. 17.	Herbert P. Hinnenkamp Route 1 Paynesville, Minnesota.  For injuries sustained by claimant	

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

- while assisting state veterinarian during  
brucellosis test. 1,200.00
- Subd. 18. LeRoy Jackson  
1576 Duluth Avenue  
St. Paul, Minnesota 55106.  
For loss and damage to articles taken  
from cottage by escapees from youth  
conservation camp. 124.52
- Subd. 19. Noyes Construction Company  
Fergus Falls, Minnesota.  
For additional labor and machinery re-  
quired to demolish portion of dining  
hall at Fergus Falls state hospital. 13,242.27
- Subd. 20. Leonard LeRoy Burrige  
1616 Taylor Avenue  
Saint Paul, Minnesota.  
For injuries sustained while claimant  
was performing assigned duties at the  
state prison. 100.00
- Subd. 21. Red River Valley Cooperative  
Power Association  
Halstad, Minnesota.  
For damage to power poles by fire  
started by manager at Buffalo River  
state park. 93.62
- Subd. 22. Ezra W. Arndt, Jr.  
RR 1, New Ulm, Minnesota.  
For injuries sustained by claimant  
while performing assigned duties at St.  
Cloud reformatory. 266.70
- Subd. 23. Lyle Radtke  
Box 55, Stillwater, Minnesota.  
For injuries sustained by claimant  
while performing assigned duties at the  
state prison.  
The amount of this claim is to be paid  
to the claimant upon his release from  
the state prison and upon the certifica-

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

	tion of the warden thereof that he has been so released.	333.38
Subd. 24.	Perkins-Tracy Printing Co. 2381 Highway 36 West at Eustis Roseville, Minnesota.	
	For additional printing cost because of error in original estimate.	800.00
Subd. 25.	Mr. & Mrs. Vernon Howard 6819 Sherburne Duluth, Minnesota.	
	For destruction of property by fire started by children who were wards of the state of Minnesota.	1,672.00
Subd. 26.	Thomas Bernard Raiche 653-109th Lane N E Minneapolis, Minnesota. 55433.	
	For injuries sustained by claimant when glass door from cigar counter operated by blind individual fell on his foot.	24.05
Subd. 27.	Sanders Ackerberg, Father and natural guardian of Shelly Ackerberg 2200 Drew Avenue South Minneapolis, Minnesota.	
	For injuries sustained by claimant's daughter at the university of Minnesota.	366.52
Subd. 28.	Angela M. Reid 711 Aurora Saint Paul, Minnesota.	
	For injuries sustained by claimant at the state fair grounds.	400.00
Subd. 29.	Arnold Roseland Sturgeon Lake, Minnesota.	
	For loss sustained by claimant when wrong animal was tagged as reactor during brucellosis test.	145.00

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

- Subd. 30. Donald R. Pielow  
3542 Benjamin N.E.  
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55418.  
For destruction of property by escapees from youth conservation camp. 25.00
- Subd. 31. Mrs. Florence Pietrs, Mother and natural guardian of Michael J. Pietrs  
1419 Waverly Avenue  
Duluth, Minnesota.  
For injuries sustained by claimant's son on university of Minnesota, Duluth branch, property. 750.00
- Subd. 32. *Implement Dealers Mutual Insurance Company*  
405 Bruce Avenue  
Grand Forks, North Dakota.  
For refund of payment made to claimant's insured for loss occurring from fire at national guard armory at Sauk Centre, Minnesota. 184.00
- Subd. 33. Edward A. Banker  
Box 55, Stillwater, Minnesota.  
For injuries sustained by claimant while performing assigned duties at the state prison.  
The amount of this claim is to be paid to the claimant upon his release from the state prison and upon certification of the warden thereof that he has been so released. 186.69
- Subd. 34. Edmond F. Bode  
RR, Courtland, Minnesota.  
For loss of cow following brucellosis test. 250.00
- Subd. 35. Neil N. Gould  
349 South Saratoga  
Saint Paul, Minnesota.  
For damage to automobile by patient

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

- at Minnesota youth residential treatment center. 12.00
- Subd. 36. Arnold E. Olsen  
Lake Benton, Minnesota.  
For loss of cow following brucellosis test. 100.00
- Subd. 37. Kenneth Moe  
Pine City, Minnesota.  
For loss of cow following brucellosis test. 225.00
- Subd. 38. Osborne McMillan Elevator Company  
P.O. Box 2113, Commerce Station  
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55414.  
For loss of grain through negligence of grain inspector. 595.14
- Subd. 39. Gary D. Robb  
Box B, St. Cloud, Minnesota.  
For injuries sustained by claimant while performing assigned duties at the St. Cloud reformatory.  
The amount of this claim is to be paid to the claimant upon his release from the reformatory and upon the certification of the superintendent thereof that he has been so released. 533.40
- Subd. 40. Tommy Morris  
Box 55, Stillwater, Minnesota.  
For injuries sustained by claimant while performing assigned duties at the state prison.  
The amount of this claim is to be paid to the claimant upon his release from the state prison and upon certification of the warden thereof that he has been so released. 333.37
- Subd. 41. Raymond Floyd  
Box B, St. Cloud, Minnesota.  
For injuries sustained by claimant

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**



while performing assigned duties at the St. Cloud reformatory.

The amount of this claim is to be paid to the claimant upon his release from the reformatory and upon the certification of the superintendent thereof that he has been so released.

173.30

- Subd. 42. Clarence Bloom and  
Alvin Moline  
Cambridge, Minnesota.

For department's share of cost of extending sewer line used by Cambridge forestry station.

493.50

- Subd. 43. Cyril Meyer & Son  
RFD 3, Box 113  
Red Wing, Minnesota.

For loss of calf following brucellosis test.

100.00

- Subd. 44. Carl Leonard Carlson  
Box 412, Moose Lake, Minnesota.

For funeral expenses incurred when claimant's son died at Brainerd state hospital through alleged negligence.

639.00

- Subd. 45. Ed Vander Plaats  
Bejou, Minnesota.

For articles stolen from home by ward of the state.

66.59

- Subd. 46. Mrs. Earle A. Dixon  
500 Elm Street, Oak Park  
Stillwater, Minnesota.

Reimbursement for money and clothing stolen by a ward of the state.

80.39

- Subd. 47. Duane Brill  
Route 4, Little Falls, Minnesota.

For loss of cow following brucellosis test.

200.00

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

- Subd. 48. Clifford H. Witty  
P.O. Box 107  
St. Peter, Minnesota.  
For damage to automobile by patient  
at St. Peter state hospital. 24.00
- Subd. 49. George T. Witty  
1132 No. Washington  
St. Peter, Minnesota.  
For damage to automobile by patient  
at St. Peter state hospital. 75.00
- Subd. 50. Alex J. Kalis  
R. R. 3, New Richland, Minnesota.  
For loss sustained by claimant when  
wrong animal was tagged as reactor  
during brucellosis test. 100.00
- Subd. 51. Ed Vilmo  
Gary, Minnesota.  
For loss of calf following brucellosis  
test. 95.00
- Subd. 52. Waino J. Makinen  
R.R. 2, Bovey, Minnesota.  
For loss of registered cow following  
brucellosis test. 300.00
- Subd. 53. Leon Edward Olson  
3600 — 85th Avenue N.  
Minneapolis, Minnesota.  
For injuries sustained by claimant  
while performing assigned duties at St.  
Cloud reformatory. 5,200.65
- Subd. 54. Floyd Fath  
Wilmont, Minnesota.  
For injuries to cow during brucellosis  
test. 120.00
- Subd. 55. West Central Minnesota Girl  
Scout Council  
Rau Building, Willmar, Minnesota.  
For replacement of equipment and re-

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

	pair of camp building damaged by patient who escaped from Willmar state hospital.	500.00
Subd. 56.	Albin W. Mattson and Raymond L. Olson Warroad, Minnesota.  For return of bond posted upon acceptance of bid on a state project from which claimants were forced to withdraw when they were unable to secure a performance bond.	849.25
Subd. 57.	Georgie D. Kulsrud Route 2, Box 56 Chatfield, Minnesota.  For loss of one cow and injury to another during brucellosis test.	336.34
Subd. 58.	Mrs. Gertrude Nicoll Rte 1, St. Paul Park, Minnesota.  For injuries sustained by claimant when attacked by patient at a state hospital.	100.00
Subd. 59.	Amos Smith Ellendale, Minnesota.  For loss of cow following brucellosis test.	125.00
Subd. 60.	Dorrell Morgan 707 — 5th Avenue N.E. Austin, Minnesota.  For injuries sustained by claimant while performing assigned duties at the St. Cloud reformatory.	866.78
Subd. 61.	Mrs. E. C. Hoppe 1 East Jessamine Avenue St. Paul, Minnesota.  For cost of replacing dentures lost by claimant's husband while confined in Willmar state hospital.	125.00

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

- Subd. 62. Charles Vernon Johnson  
Box 55, Stillwater, Minnesota.  
For injuries sustained by claimant while performing assigned duties at the state prison.  
The amount of this claim is to be paid to the claimant upon his release from the state prison and upon certification of the warden thereof that he has been so released. 46.67
- Subd. 63. Adolph Larson  
Ulen, Minnesota.  
For loss of two calves following brucellosis test. 500.00
- Subd. 64. Harland J. Dellwo  
Box 55, Stillwater, Minnesota.  
For injuries sustained by claimant while performing assigned duties at the state prison.  
The amount of this claim is to be paid to the claimant upon his release from the state prison and upon certification of the warden thereof that he has been so released. 920.12
- Sec. 4. Appropriations from highway and related funds.**  
Subdivision 1. There is appropriated from any moneys in the state treasury credited to the trunk highway fund, or funds accredited thereto from highway patrol fines or other sources, the sums of money set forth in this section to the persons named therein in full payment of claims against the state.
- Subd. 2. City of Pipestone  
Pipestone, Minnesota.  
Department's share of cost for construction of sewer. 2,430.00
- Subd. 3. George Companaro  
3200 Rice Street  
Saint Paul, Minnesota.  
For loss of crops by flooding caused by improper installation of culverts. 1,500.00

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

Subd. 4.	<p>Minneapolis Water Works 221 City Hall Minneapolis, Minnesota 55415.</p> <p>For loss of water meter on property purchased by highway department.</p>	264.69
Subd. 5.	<p>Housing &amp; Redevelopment Authority of Chisholm 519 S.W. Sixth Street Chisholm, Minnesota.</p> <p>Department's share of cost for con- struction of sewer main.</p>	4,000.00
Subd. 6.	<p>Mabel Volunteer Fire Department Mabel, Minnesota.</p> <p>For services rendered in extinguish- ing grass fire on trunk highway.</p>	40.00
Subd. 7.	<p>American Premier Insurance Co. Rochester, Minnesota.</p> <p>For damage to building when highway department oil tank exploded.</p>	113.80
Subd. 8.	<p>Robert P. Bizal 416 — 4th Avenue South Chisholm, Minnesota.</p> <p>For flood damage caused by highway construction.</p>	377.02
*Subd. 9.	<p>Harry J. Hooley Route 4, Stillwater, Minnesota.</p> <p>For flood damage caused by highway construction.</p>	400.00
Subd. 10.	<p>Insurance Company of North America 207-217 Northern Pacific Lane S.E. St. Cloud, Minnesota.</p> <p>For damage to property when highway department oil tank exploded.</p>	822.00

\*Subd. 9. vetoed by Governor.

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

- Subd. 11. St. Paul Fire & Marine  
Insurance Company  
385 Washington Street  
Saint Paul, Minnesota 55102.  
  
For damage to property when highway  
department oil tank exploded. 84.35
- Subd. 12. Mrs. Lila Christensen  
Route 1, Box 62  
Grand Rapids, Minnesota.  
  
For injuries sustained by claimant  
when she fell on improperly main-  
tained highway. 114.00
- Subd. 13. Robert K. Edgett  
c/o Bernard K. Littman  
Attorney at law  
Minnesota Building  
Saint Paul, Minnesota 55101.  
  
For injuries received by claimant's son  
when highway marker fell. 163.64
- Subd. 14. Frank C. & Rose Sevshek  
225 S.W. 6 Street  
Chisholm, Minnesota.  
  
For flood damage caused by highway  
construction. 250.00
- Subd. 15. Mrs. Frances A. Doherty  
318 S. Brimhall  
Saint Paul, Minnesota 55105.  
  
For injuries sustained by claimant  
when she fell in highway building. 58.50
- Subd. 16. Reede Gray  
517 East Third Street  
Redwood Falls, Minnesota.  
  
For damages to claimant's vehicle  
when it was involved in an accident  
caused because of improper operation  
of signal lights. 243.65

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

Subd. 17.	Lawrence Trucano Tower, Minnesota. For removal of gravel from claimant's property by highway department.	1,500.00
Subd. 18.	Edward A. Voeller, Sr. 1146 Breen Street Saint Paul, Minnesota 55106. For damage to car when wind hurled highway barricades against same.	85.00
Subd. 19.	Marten Aschenbrenner Rice, Minnesota. Reimbursement for tractor tire de- stroyed by post left in ground by sur- vey crews.	202.53
Subd. 20.	Northern States Power Co. 15 South Fifth Street Minneapolis, Minnesota. For damage to conduit cable by high- way construction crews.	6,200.00
Subd. 21.	Motors Insurance Corporation 801 Park Avenue Minneapolis, Minnesota 55404. For damage to vehicle caused by high- way construction crew.	106.39
Subd. 22.	Lester Bakka 1505 Highway 33 South Cloquet, Minnesota. For damage to tire caused by broken highway sign post.	17.50
<p>Sec. 5. <b>Appropriations from highway user tax distribution fund.</b> Subdivision 1. There is appropriated from any moneys in the state treasury credited to the highway user tax distribution fund the sums of money set forth in this section to the persons named therein in full payment of claims against the state.</p>		
Subd. 2.	Miller & Holmes, Inc. 501 Lafayette Road St. Paul, Minnesota 55101. For refund of gasoline tax paid on gas- oline lost when tank was damaged.	69.55

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

Subd. 3.	Northwest Oil Company 1344 Sheridan Avenue North Minneapolis, Minnesota 55411.  For refund of gasoline tax on gasoline destroyed when mixed with another product.	1,869.55
Subd. 4.	Hilton F. Schuster, d/b/a Schuster Standard Service Dodge Center, Minnesota.  For refund of gasoline tax on gasoline lost when tank was damaged.	167.20
Subd. 5.	King & Grabow, Inc. 526 N. Washington Avenue Detroit Lakes, Minnesota.  For refund of gasoline tax on gasoline lost when underground storage tank was damaged.	189.36
Subd. 6.	Stanley F. Walczynski 2720 West Skyline Parkway Duluth, Minnesota.  For refund of license fee for period of time truck was not used.	416.65
Subd. 7.	APCO Service Station Donald Hejny, Proprietor Sandstone, Minnesota.  For refund of gasoline tax on gasoline lost when tank was damaged.	590.36

Sec. 6. Except as otherwise provided for in this act, no payment shall be made to any claimant until a full and complete release in a form approved by the attorney general has been filed in the office of the state auditor.

Sec. 7. **Lac Qui Parle project claims.** Subdivision 1. **Waiver of immunity from suit.** The state of Minnesota hereby waives immunity from suit and admits liability to the claimants hereinafter named for any damages to real estate situated in Lac qui Parle and Chippewa counties caused by the creation and maintenance of a reservoir for the storage and maintenance of an adequate supply of water in Lac qui Parle lake and for the purpose of the regulation and control of floods.

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**



**Subd. 2. Claimants may bring action within six months.** The claimants hereinafter named may bring action against the state upon their claims for damages, providing that every such action shall be commenced within six months after the effective date of this act. Such actions shall be brought in the district court in the county in which the real estate damaged is situated, subject to the conditions and limitations hereinafter prescribed.

**Subd. 3. Process.** The summons and complaint in every such action shall be served on the attorney general who shall defend the action but the attorney general shall not interpose the defense of the statutes of limitations in any action commenced.

**Subd. 4. To be tried as other cases.** All such actions shall be heard and determined as other civil actions and shall be subject to all applicable laws and rules so far as not inconsistent herewith. Upon determination in any such action that a claimant is entitled to damages as a result of the creation and perpetual maintenance of a reservoir for the storage and maintenance of an adequate supply of water in Lac qui Parle lake and for the purpose of the regulation and control of floods, judgment shall be rendered against the state for the amount of such damages and costs.

**Subd. 5. Commissioner may compromise claims.** The commissioner of conservation may pay, compromise, adjust or settle any or all of the respective claims herein referred to.

**Subd. 6. Appropriation.** There is appropriated from the general revenue fund in the state treasury the sum of \$92,000 or so much thereof as may be necessary to pay all judgments entered in any action commenced under the terms of this act and for the settlements of any or all of the respective claims as provided for in section 7.

**Subd. 7. Total payments.** No judgment entered or settlement made pursuant to the terms of this act shall be paid until all of the claims of the claimants enumerated in section 8 have been adjudicated and determined. If the amount of the appropriation made by section 6 is insufficient to pay the full amount of all judgments or settlements then such judgments and settlements shall be prorated within the amount of the appropriation herein made among the various claimants. No payment shall be made in any event unless the claimant fully releases the state of Minnesota from the full amount of his claim in such form as the attorney general shall prescribe and until the claimant executes and delivers to the state of Minnesota a flowage easement over, across, and upon his lands which have been damaged. All flowage easements shall be approved

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

by the attorney general as to form and legality before payment is made.

Subd. 8. **Claimants.** The names of the persons claiming damages pursuant to the terms of this act and the lands claimed to have been damaged are as follows:

In Lac qui Parle county:

*AMY CHURCHILL*

All of Government Lot One (1), Section 24, Township 118, Range 42, lying southwesterly of Minnesota River Spillway except .55 A Tract (17.45 acres)

*MINNESOTA VALLEY COOP L & P ASS'N.*

.55 Acre Tract in Government Lot One (1), Section 24, Township 118, Range 42 (.55 acres)

*LOUIS VELLEKSON*

Southwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (SW  $\frac{1}{4}$  NW  $\frac{1}{4}$ ) and Government Lots 2 and 3, less Parcels B, D, and E all in Section 24, Township 118, Range 42 39.34 acres

*JOHN L. I. HASTAD*

Parcel B, Section 24, Township 118, Range 42 4.72 acres

*ALVIN C. JOHNSON*

Parcel D, Section 24, Township 118, Range 42 4.20 acres

*OLE LYNGEN AND O. ERLANDSON*

Parcel E, Section 24, Township 118, Range 42 5.75 acres

*ELWOOD ANDERSON*

The Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter )  
(SE  $\frac{1}{4}$  SW  $\frac{1}{4}$ ), Section 24, Township 118, Range 42, )  
9.38 acres )

The Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter )  
(SW  $\frac{1}{4}$  SE  $\frac{1}{4}$ ), Section 24 and that part of the SE  $\frac{1}{4}$  SE  $\frac{1}{4}$  )  
west of River, Section 24, all in Township 118, Range 42 )  
54.46 acres )

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

The Northeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter )  
 (NE  $\frac{1}{4}$  NE  $\frac{1}{4}$ ) Section 25, Township 118, Range 42 )  
 8.68 acres )

Also Government Lot Six (6), Section 30, Township )  
 118, Range 41 1.96 acres )

*JAY ANDERSON*

The Northwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter (NW  $\frac{1}{4}$   
 SW  $\frac{1}{4}$ ), Section 24, Township 118, Range 41 13.30 acres

*MARY ADAMSON ESTATE*

East Half of Government Lot Five (5), Section 30, Town-  
 ship 118, Range 41 1.54 acres

*ELVER J. JOHNSON*

Government Lot 4, Section 30; West Half of Govern-  
 ment Lot 5, Section 30; Government Lot 3, Section 30; and the  
 Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter (SW  $\frac{1}{4}$  SW  $\frac{1}{4}$ ),  
 Section 29; all in Township 118, Range 41 43.96 acres

*B. G. HOLEN*

Government Lot 1 and Government Lot 2, Section 32,  
 Township 118, Range 41 56.28 acres

*AUGUST LUND*

Government Lot 4, Section 5, Township 117, Range 41  
 5.04 acres

*ADOLPH & HILDUR RONNING*

Government Lot 1, Section 9, Township 117, Range 41  
 and Government Lot 1, Section 16, Township 117, Range 41  
 24.78 acres

*THEODORE H. HANSON*

Government Lot 2, Section 16, Township 117, Range  
 41 and Government Lots 7 and 8, Section 15, Township 117,  
 Range 41 92.68 acres

*HANNAH JOHNSON, IDA TORGELSON, MABEL OLSON-  
 EDWIN STEENSON*

Government Lot 2, Section 15, Township 117, Range  
 41 55.72 acres

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

*FRED AND IRENE NIELSEN*

Government Lot 1, Section 15, Township 117, Range 41  
and Government Lot 4, Section 14, Township 117, Range 41  
35.98 acres

*GERALD AND VERA WINSLOW*

Government Lot 3, Section 14, Township 117, Range 41  
35.28 acres

*FRANCIS WINSLOW*

Government Lot 2, Section 14, Township 117, Range 41  
and the West One-third of Government Lot 1, Section 14,  
Township 117, Range 41 40.13 acres

*GEORGE AND YERAL HARRIS*

East Two-thirds of Government Lot 1, Section 14, Town-  
ship 117, Range 41 4.11 acres

*MIDWEST BROADCASTING CO.*

Part of Government Lot 2, Section 13, Township 117,  
Range 41 2.80 acres

*MONTEVIDEO GOLF CLUB*

Part of Government Lot 1, Section 13, Township 117,  
Range 41 14.84 acres

In Chippewa county:

*WALTER & EMELIA MILLER*

Government Lot 1, Section 24, Township 118, Range 42;  
Government Lot 2, Section 24, Township 118, Range 42;  
Southeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter, Section 24, Town-  
ship 118, Range 42; Northeast Quarter of the Northeast Quar-  
ter of Section 24, Township 118, Range 42; and Government  
Lots 3 and 4, Section 24, Township 118, Range 42 92.25 acres

*JOSEPH AND LIELLA WALSTAD*

Tract A, Section 24, Township 118, Range 42 2.00 acres

*CLAIR T. AND ALMA ROLLINGS*

Tract C, Section 24, Township 118, Range 42 4.00 acres

Tract D, Section 24, Township 118, Range 42 1.00 acres

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

*HERMAN HAGENSTAD AND ERNEST STOEN*

Tract E, Section 24, Township 118, Range 42 12.50 acres

*LAWRENCE MITLING*

Tract G, Section 24, Township 118, Range 42 2.50 acres

*HANNAH JOHNSON*

Tracts H and J., Section 24, Township 118, Range 42  
9.06 acres

*GORDON L. HANSON*

Tract K, Section 24, Township 118, Range 42 8.88 acres

*MARY M. PETERSON*

Tract L, Section 24, Township 118, Range 42 3.87 acres

*PAUL A. ENGELSON AND NEIL G. MILLER*

Tract M, Section 24, Township 118, Range 42 1.00 acres

*ANNA SIMPSON*

Government Lot 2, Section 19 and Government Lot 3,  
Section 19 all in Township 118, Range 41 17.92 acres

*OSCAR AND CLIFFORD TEIGEN*

Tract A of Section 19, Township 118, Range 41  
26.19 acres

Tract B of Section 19, Township 118, Range 41 8.00 acres

*MATHILDA ANGRIMSON*

Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter (NE  $\frac{1}{4}$  SW  $\frac{1}{4}$ ), and the Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter, (SE  $\frac{1}{4}$  SW  $\frac{1}{4}$ ), Section 19; and the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter (SW  $\frac{1}{4}$  SE  $\frac{1}{4}$ ), Section 19; all in Township 118, Range 41 70.84 acres

*PAUL A. ENGELSON et al*

Tract A, Section 30, Township 118, Range 41 4.24 acres

*ARNOLD C. AND KENNETH W. ANDERSON*

Tract B, Section 30, Township 118, Range 41 16.24 acres

*OSCAR H. AND HELEN T. TEIGEN*

Tract C, Section 30, Township 118, Range 41 2.25 acres

**Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

*THELMA H. PITZEL*

Tract D, Section 30, Township 118, Range 41 2.75 acres

*RUEBEN AND SHERMAN JERVE*

Tract F, Section 30, Township 118, Range 41 12.60 acres

*HANNAH JOHNSON*

Tract G, Section 30, Township 118, Range 41 4.60 acres

*ANDREW PEDERSON*

Tract J, Section 30, Township 118, Range 41 4.61 acres

*HENRY O. KANTEN*

Tract K, Section 30, Township 118, Range 41 2.98 acres

*C. J. KANTEN*

Tract L, Section 30, Township 118, Range 41 3.11 acres

*SHERMAN AND VERNA SANDVIN*

Tract N, Section 30, Township 118, Range 41 5.00 acres

*HENRY AND SADIE M. MILLER*

Tract P, Section 30, Township 118, Range 41 5.00 acres

*ALVIN G. JOHNSON*

Tract Q, Section 30, Township 118, Range 41 5.00 acres

*SHERMAN AND RUEBEN JERVE*

Tract R, Section 30, Township 118, Range 41 5.00 acres

*OBERT M. SANDBAKKEN*

Tract S, Section 30, Township 118, Range 41 2.50 acres

*GORDON HAGEN*

Government Lot 3, less above tracts, Section 30, Township 118, Range 41 42.46 acres

*BERNARD E. JOHNSON*

Tract U, Section 30, Township 118, Range 41 and Government Lot 4, Section 30, Township 118, Range 41, less State land of 17.50 acres 51.66 acres

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

*MANLEY, HILDA AND LEONARD LUND*

Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (NW  $\frac{1}{4}$  NW  $\frac{1}{4}$ ), Section 29, Township 118, Range 41 11.48 acres

*HOLIS JOHNSON*

Southwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter, Section 29, Township 118, Range 41 37.80 acres

*IRVIN H. AND COYLA C. ANDREWS*

Northwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter (NW  $\frac{1}{4}$  SW  $\frac{1}{4}$ ); Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (SE  $\frac{1}{4}$  NW  $\frac{1}{4}$ ); Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter (NE  $\frac{1}{4}$  SW  $\frac{1}{4}$ ) all in Section 29, Township 118, Range 41 98.84 acres

*CHRIST CANTON*

Government Lot 3, Section 29, Township 118, Range 41 41.86 acres

*HENRY AND OLGA STOKKE*

Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter, Section 29, Township 118, Range 41 29.68 acres

*H. AND A. DVERGSTEN*

Southeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter, (SE  $\frac{1}{4}$  SE  $\frac{1}{4}$ ), Section 29, Township 118, Range 41 7.56 acres

*B. G. HOLEN*

Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (NE  $\frac{1}{4}$  NW  $\frac{1}{4}$ ), Section 32, Township 118, Range 41 11.20 acres

*H. AND A. DVERGSTEN, ARNOLD CORNEILSEN,  
G. J. HILDEN, SHERMAN AND RUEBEN JERVE*

Government Lot 2, Section 32, Township 118, Range 41 42.56 acres

*ALVIN, HENRY AND OLGA STOKKE*

West Half of the Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter, Section 32, Township 118, Range 41 19.04 acres

*ALVIN C., HENRY AND OLGA STOKKE*

Southwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (SW  $\frac{1}{4}$  NW  $\frac{1}{4}$ ) Section 33, Township 118, Range 41 10.08 acres

**Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**

*OWNERSHIP AS DETERMINED BY THE COURT* (Harold & Agnes Dvergstén, Henry Gemsey, and N. O. Borton)

Government Lot 3, Section 32, Township 118, Range 41  
37.10 acres

*OWNERSHIP AS DETERMINED BY THE COURT* (Minnie Perske, Judith Mork, Mina Steenson, Oscar J. Anderson, and Herb R. and June Adamson)

Government Lot 4, Section 32, Township 118, Range 41  
22.68 acres

*OTTO F. AND MILTON ANDERSON*

Government Lot 2, Section 5, Township 117, Range 41  
16.38 acres

Southwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (SW  $\frac{1}{4}$  NW  $\frac{1}{4}$ ), Section 4, Township 117, Range 41  
31.22 acres

*OWNERSHIP AS DETERMINED BY THE COURT* (Minnie Perske, Ida Raddahl, Tillie Zempel, Louis Zempel, et al)

Southeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter (SE  $\frac{1}{4}$  SE  $\frac{1}{4}$ ), Section 5, Township 117, Range 41  
27.58 acres

*NEAL E. SIMONS AND ESTHER GALLAGHER*

Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter (SW  $\frac{1}{4}$  SW  $\frac{1}{4}$ ) Section 4, Township 117, Range 41  
15.68 acres

*OWNERSHIP AS DETERMINED BY THE COURT* (L. J. Mitlyng Est., Oscar J. Christianson, Louis Zempel, et al)

Government Lot 1, Section 8, Township 117, Range 41  
11.09 acres

*OWNERSHIP TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COURT*  
(Ownership to be ascertained — small tracts)

Government Lot 1, Section 9, Township 117, Range 41  
24.36 acres

*J. WILLIAM JAHN*

Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter (NE  $\frac{1}{4}$  SW  $\frac{1}{4}$ ), Section 11, Township 117, Range 41  
10.64 acres

*OWNERSHIP TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COURT*  
(Verna Kittelson and James Lageson, Charles & Florence Kern,

**Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by strikeout.**



Raymond Budd, Verdi & Mildred Claggett, Dave, Norman and Ivan Fossen)

Government Lot 5, Section 13, Township 117, Range 41  
24.92 acres

Sec. 8. The provisions of this act are effective immediately upon its enactment.

Approved May 21, 1965.

---

CHAPTER 580—S. F. No. 1681

[Not Coded]

*An act authorizing the sale of the tuberculosis sanatorium operated by Chippewa, Lac qui Parle, Renville, and Yellow Medicine counties.*

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

**Section 1. Chippewa county, Lac qui Parle, Renville, and Yellow Medicine counties; tuberculosis sanatorium.** Notwithstanding the provisions of any other law to the contrary, the counties of Chippewa, Lac qui Parle, Renville, and Yellow Medicine may sell the real and personal property of the tuberculosis sanatorium operated by them at Granite Falls in the manner provided in Minnesota Statutes, Section 376.54, except that the sale may be made with or without bids and without the consent of the commissioner of public welfare.

Sec. 2. This act is effective when approved by the boards of county commissioners of all of the following counties: Chippewa, Lac qui Parle, Renville, and Yellow Medicine, and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 645.021.

Approved May 21, 1965.

---

CHAPTER 581—H. F. No. 1400

[Coded in Part]

*An act relating to intoxicating liquor; amending Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 340.11 by adding a new subdivision thereto; and*

**Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.**